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Vision & Mission Statements

Vision

Our vision is to be one of the leading Islamic Financial
Institution within Modaraba sector by offering Shari'ah
compliant solutions for an optimal satisfaction of
customers

Mission

The basic aim of Sindh Modaraba is to seek Allah's
blessing for transformation of our business dealings in
accordance with the principles enshrined in the Islamic
Shari'ah. And to develop an Islamic Institution by
implementing Allah's will in the line with the practices
of His Prophet (P.B.U.H.) by meeting its stated objectives
built on Trust, Integrity, Innovation and good governance
for meeting expectation of its stakeholders."
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Mr. Waseem Mehdi Syed ~-Chairman -independent Director

Mr. Sami ul Haq Khilji -Non-Executive Director

#hr. Kazim Hussain Jatoi -Mon-Executive Director

Mr. Kamal Ahmed -Non-Executive Director

Ms. Maila Asad Shaikh -Mon-Executive Director

Mr. Ishfague Ahmed -Chief Executive Officer

CFO & Company Secretary

Muhammad Adnan Shakeel

Audit Committee Shariah Advisor

Mr. Kamal Ahmed -Chairman Mufti Zeeshan Abdul Aziz

Ms. Naila Asad Shaikh -Membear

Human Resource Committee Legal Advisor

Mr. Waseem Mehdi Syed -Chairman Mohsin Tayebaly & Co.

Mr. Sami ul Haq Khilji -Member

Nomination Committee Share Registrar

Mr. Waseem Mehdi Syed -Chairman F.D. Registrar Services Pvt. Ltd.

Mr. Kamal Ahmed -Member Office # 1705, 17th Floor, Saima
Trade Tower-A, |.I. Chundrigarh
Road, Karachi

Procurement Committee

Mr. Sami ul Haq Khilji -Chairman

Mr. Kamal Ahmed -Member

Risk Management Committee Registered/Head Office

Mr, Waseem Mehdi Syed -Chairman 1st Floor, Imperial Court Building,

Ms. Naila Asad Shaikh -Member Dr, Ziauddin Ahmed Road
Karachi
Tel: (92-21) 35640708-9

Bankers Lahore Branch

Sindh Bank Limited (Islamic Banking) 30-30A, Commercial Building

Meezan Bank Limited The Mall

NRSP Microfinance Bank Limited (Islamic Banking) Lahore

Soneri Bank Limited (Islamic Banking)
Al Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited
Habkib Metropeolitan Bank (Islamic Banking)

Auditors
Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Qamar
Chartered Accountants

*Note: The Board of Directors has co-opted Mr. Kazim Hussain Jatoi, Secretary Finance - Governor
of Sindh as Non Executive Director in place of Mr. Sajid Jamal Abro on 21 September 2023 subject
to approval of Registrar Modaraba.
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Director’s Report

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Sindh Modaraba Management Limited, we are presenting the 9th annual
reporl of Sindh Modaraba togelher with Audiled Accounls for the year ended June 30, 2023.

1. Economy

The country’s economy is facing numerous challienges, including political instability, catastrophic flooding in 2022
and delicale economic conditions. Inflation and consumer price index is expected to remain high on the back of
further fuel price increases and its significantly impact on Inving standard,

Furthermore, inconsistenl policy measures, including informal exchange rate restrictions and import controls,
delayed the IMF-EFF program, and contnbuted to creditworthiness downgrades. The economic outiook is dependent
on timely and full implementation of policy reforms, with very high downside risks. Implemenling the macro-
stabilizalion measures and structural reforms underpinned by the IMF-EFF program is necessary for unlocking
much-needed external refinancing and new disbursements from regional partners. IMF has asked Pakistan to
meet a number of conditions, which among others included; 1) market-determined exchange rates, 2) a positive
real interesi rates, and 3) commitment of FCY support from friendly countries,

Maintaining stability and a sustained recovery will require the development, communication, and effective
implemeniation of a bold reform strategy, including: i) adherence lo a flexible market-delermined exchange rate
and sound fiscal-monelary policies, i) increased domestic revenue mabilizalion; iii) curtailing and improving the
quality of public expenditures: iv) sfructural reforms to improve investmeni, competitiveness, and productivity; and
v} urgent measures to restore the financial viability of the energy sector.

Fulure oullook remains relatively unpredictable, as lot depends upon helding eleclions as well as finalization of
the IMF program. Currency exchange and interest rates are expected 1o remain under pressure due to the absence
of clear and prudent economic policy due to prevailing political instability.

2. Operating Results and Business Overview

The Modaraba earned a nel profit of Rs. 120.41 million during the year under review as compared lo a net profit
of Rs. 66.31 million earned during the year ended June 30, 2022. The profil before lax increased by Rs. 93.88
million, During the year, the Modaraba has disbursed Rs. 252.90 million as Istamic financing and SBP has also
increased its policy rate to 22%. which increased the earnings from the financing portfolic and funds placed with
the banks. The Gross Financing Portfolio of the Modaraba net increased by Rs. 17.54 Million o Rs. $19 .47 Million.
Further, with the increase in the portiolio, DM revenue increased by Rs. 112,64 million due to an ingrease in the
weighted average rate of return by 20.18%. The operating expenses is Rs. 64.09 million as compared to Rs.
40 88 million in the same period last year mainly due to a one-time donation of about Bs. 10 million to flood victims
as Corporate Social Responsibility and inflationary effect in a recessional economic condition.

The aperating results for the year ending June 30, 2023, are summarized in the table below:

June 30,2023 |  June 30, 2022
P — T T T ——

Balance Sheet

Certificate capital 450 000,000 450,000,000
Tolal equity 1,722 367,212 1,645,948 970
Investment in Diminishing Musharaka 863 791 867 B43 708 022
Profit & Loss

Fevenue (nel of ljarah assel depreciation) 279 664 B09 167,021 948
Operating expenses 64,092,024 40,867,729
Profit before management fee 218,363,097 113,522,169
Net Profit before tax 194 575,067 | 100,694,164
‘Net Profit after fax” 150,410,860 6E 313227
Appropriations SO RT e | Ve PEy e
Praofit disiribution @ of 12 50% (2022 12.00%) 56,250,000 54,000,000
Statulory Reserve 26,082,172 13,262 644
| Earning per Certificate 280 TA4T
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3. Outlook
Moving lowards FY 2024, the country's economy appears lo be entering into a new phase. Pending final approval
by its board, the IMF provisionally agreed to a USD 3 billion bailout with the government on 30 June, averting
an imminent default. The agreement will improve international reserves and unlock further funding from other
creditors, such as the USD 2 billion from Saudi Arabia announced on 11 July 2023. Having said thal, the government
was forced o revise ils budget 1o secure the IMF deal, culting spending and raising laxes.

Management is continuously reviewing the economic developments and is prudently making decisions towards
advances and deployment of funds withoul compromising the qualily portfolio.

4. Profit distribution

The Board of Directors has approved a cash dividend @ 12.50% (2022:12.00%) i.e. Rs. 1.25 (2022: Rs. 1.20)
per certificate for the year ended 30th June 2023,

As per Modaraba Regulations issued by Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, every Modaraba may
creale reserve fund to which shall be credited an amount of its after-fax profits or any part thereof.

The Board of Directors has appropriated Rs. 26,082 172/~ (20%) towards the Statutory Resenve.
5. External Annual Audit

The financial statements of Modaraba have been audited without any qualification by the auditors namely M/s.
Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Qamar, Chartered Accountants.

6. Corporate Governance
The Modaraba 15 required to comply with various requirements of the Public Sector Companies (Corporate
Governance) Rules, 2013 {Rules) as well as Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations
2019 (the CCG) issued by the SECP.

The statutory auditors are also required to 1ssue their review report over the compliance statement of the best
practices, which is published with the financial statements.

The Board of Directors has reviewed the CCG and Rules and confirms that;

. The Board has consistently complied wilh the relevant principles of corporale governance.

® Financial statements, prepared by the management, present fairly the state of affairs, the results of its
operations, cash flows and change in equity.

L Proper books of account have been maintained,

. Appropriale accounting policies have been applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

L The system of internal confrol is sound in design and has been effectively mplemented and monitored.

L The apponiment of chairman and other members of the Board and the terms of their appointment along

with the remuneralion policy adepled are in the best interests of the Modaraba as well as in line with the
best practices.

. Appointment of one independent director is in process due to sad demise of Mr. Habibullah Khilji.

. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable o Modarabas in Pakistan, have been followed
in preparation of financial statements and any departure there from has been adeguately disclosed and
explained.

. There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are outstanding
as on June 30, 2023, excepl for those disclosed in financial statements.

. The value of Invesiment in Employees Provident Fund based on financial statements of the Fund as of
June 30, 2023 is Rs. 10.608 million (2022: Rs. 11.997 million).

. Key operaling and financial data of last six years is annexed.
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- Four Board Meetings of the Modaraba Company were held dunng the year, Attendance of each
director is appended hereunder.

“Name of Directors No. of Meetings attended

Mr. Waseem Mehdi Syed
Mr. Sajid Jamal Abro

Mr. Sami ul Hag Khilj
Mr. Kamal Ahmed

Mr. Rehan Anjum

Ms. Bukhsana Narejo

P

- Four Audit Committes meetings of the Modaraba Company were held during the year under
review. Attendance of each member s appended hereunder:

Name of Directars No. of Meetings aftended

Mr. Rehan Anjum 4
Ms. Rukhsana Narejo 4

- Two Human Resource Committee Meetings of the Modaraba Company were held during the year
under review. Attendance of each member is appended hereunder:

“Name of Directors No. of Meetings attended
Mr. Waseem Mehdi Syed

Z
Mr. Sajid Jamal Abro 2
Mr. Sami ul Hag Khilji 2

. One Risk Management Commiliee Meeting of the Modaraba Company were held during the year
under review. Attendance of each member is appended hereunder:

Name of Directors No. of Meetings attended

Mr. Waseem Mehdi Syed 1
Mr, Rehan Anjum 1
Ms. Rukhsana Narejo 1

(] The Board has also estblished Nomination Commitiee as required under the Rules. However
no meeting of this commitiee was required lo be held during the year as per applicable rules,

. The Board has also established Procurement Commillee as required under the Rules, However
no meeting of this commitlee was required lo be held during the year as per applicable rules,

- The pattern of cerlificale holding is annexed o this report,

w The Directors, CEDQ, Executives and their spouses and minor children did nof carry out any
transaction in the certificates of the Modaraba during the year.



ANNUAL REPORT JUNE 2023

T W 1 o T L W e W W

".L-
SINDH MODARARA

Director’s Report

?i-

10.

11.

The Board of Directors

The Board appointed Mr. Muhammad Bilal Sheikh and Ms. Naila Asad Shaikh as Mon-Executive Directors in place
of Mr. Rehan Anjum and Ms. Rukhsana Narejo, respectively, for remaining tenure of the hoard. The Board also
expressed condolence, profound grief and sorrow on the sudden demise of Mr. Muhammad Bilal Sheikh, Ex-
Chairman and a newly appointed Director. May Allah rest the departed soul in peace. Furlher cosnguent upon
transfer posting of Seceratry Finance-Government of Sindh, the Board has co-opted Mr. Kazim Hussain Jaloi as
Non-Executive Director in place of Mr. Sajjad Jamal Abro, which is subject to approval of Registrar Modaraba.
The Board also appreciated the valuable contributions made by the outgoing directors and welcomed new directors
on the board,

Social Responsibility

The Modaraba ensures its role of a Responsible Corporate Cilizen by conducling business in line with its mission
incorporating Shariah pringiples in a socially responsible and ethical manner, protecting the environment, and
supporting the communities and cultures with which it works.

The Medaraba is commilted to maintain the highest slandards of integrity and cerporale governance praclices
in order o maintain excellence in its daily operations, and fo build-up confidence in its governance systems.

The Modaraba constantly sirives to build trust and demonstrate respect for human dignity and rights in all
relationships, including respect for cultures, customs and values of individuals and groups.

Credit Rating

VIS Credit Rating Company has maintained long term and short term credit rating of A+ and A-1 respeciively to
the Modaraba with a stable outlook

Auditors

The Board has approved the appointment of Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Qamar, Chartered Accountants as
external auditors for the year ending June 30, 2024. However, Lheir appointment will be subject lo the approval
of Registrar Modaraba

Acknowledgment by the Management/Board

The Board would like to thank the SECP, our Shariah Advisor and NBFI & Modaraba Association for their continued
guidance and support. It would also like lo thank their valued customers of the Modaraba for their trust and supporl,
The Board also wishes to record their appreciation, dedication and hard work of the employees of the Modaraba
without which it would not have been possible to turn in such an improved performance.

(On behalf of the Board)
Ishfague Ahmed Kamal Ahmed
CEO Director

Karachi:

21 September 2023
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Key Operating & Financial Data

2000 2019 2018
Certificate capital | 450000000 450000000 450,000,000 450000000 450,000,000 450,000,000
Reserves 212367212 195948070 175056964 150974420 113,046,762 65,786,214
Total equity 1722367212 1845948070 1825056964 1609974420 1063046762 1015786214
Total Assets 1778233492 1684584728 1857153740 1706170852 1630272831 1569428718
Fnancing Portfolio 919465142 901926698 859574172 816236706 6BGTITEM  GTETIT.TIT
Nen-performing loans 133486060 110748423 120753848 55,286,568 - -
Provision {excluding general) 51,740,304 54,264,776 41,267 560 271643292 . .
Current Assets 1280808047 1173981336 1200357149  1177.337.968 1218410905 1096895414
Current Lisbilties 55,800,280 38,635,758 32,096,776 96195232 576218069 553466854
Total Liabilties 65866280 38635756 32006776  96,1952% 576226060 553642504
Profit & Loss
Revenue (net of LR dep & DM
susp. ) 167,021,948 138,244,547 188071755  125.016.560 86,769,355
Operating expenses 40,887 720 46,442,770 39222816 32113806 28,871,650
{Reversal) | Provision 132508015 13513618 28 150,551 118,068 672972
Profit before management fee 113,522,169 78,624 804 124111038 93350412 60,240,405
Profit before tax 100,694,164 75822337 107884760 81153602 52364 573
Profit afier tax 66,313,222 75822337 107884760 81133602 52,364,573
Appropriations .
Profit distribution (%) 1250% 12.00% 10.00% 13.50% 13 50% 7.50%
Profit distribution 56,250,000 54,000,000 45,000,000 60750000 60,750,000 33,750,000
Statutory Reserve 26,082,172 13,262 644 26,537,618 43153804 24346081 15,709,372
Financial Ratios A .
Eaming per Certificate 290 147 168 240 180 116
Net profit ratio before fax (%) B95T% 60.29% 54.85% 57.36% B4.91% 58.98%
Net profit ratio after tax (%) 4663% 38 70% 54 85% 57 36% B4 91% 58 08%
NPL ratio 14.52% 12.28% 14.05% 6.77% 0.00% 0.00%
NPL cover ratio 3876% 49.00% HAT% 50.00% 0.00% 0.00%
PIE Ratio an 476 522 342 416 B.02
Breakup Value 16,05 14.35 1389 1355 1251 1146
Debt ratio (%) 3.14% 229% 1.94% §64% 35.15% 35.28%
Current ratio - an 30.39 3740 1224 21 198
Earning asset to total asset (%) 9352% 94.48% 92.08% 95.61% 96.02% 93.22%
Return on asset (%) 153% 3.97% 4.51% B.45% 5.08% 403%
Retum on equity (%) 1.74% 4.05% 4.69% 8.07% 181% 5.24%
Debt Equity (%) 324% 235% 1.96% 598% 54 21% 54.50%
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Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 & Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

This statement is being presented to comply with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations
2019 and Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules 2013 (the Rules) for the purpose of establishing a
framework of good governance, whereby a public sector company s managed in compliance with the best practices
of corporate governance for the year ended June 30, 2023,

The Board of Directors of Sindh Modaraba Management Limited - the Modaraba Management Company (the Management
Company) is responsible for management of affairs of Sindh Modaraba (the Modaraba). The
Management Company has complied with the provisions of the Rules in the following manner;

5.No. | Provision of the Rules Ruleno.| ¥ I N
Tick the relevant box
The independent directors meet the criteria of independence, as defined
1. | under the Rules. 2(d) | o
2 The Board has al least one-third of its total members as independent directors. 32) v”
Al present the Board includes.
Category Mames Date of
appointment
Independent
gmpgr“:" Mr. Waseem Mehdi Syed | 26 November 2020
Chief ity
e HF“’“ Y& | Mr. Ishfaque Ahmed 05 September 2022
Mr. Kamal Ahmed 15 August 2017
: Ms. Rukhsana MNarejo 02 February 2021
g_r_m- E:mtw Mr. Rehan Anjum ! 02 Febfuag 2021
b Mr. Sajid Jamal Abro 07 March 2022
Mr. Sami ul Hag Khilji 30 May 2022

3 The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director
on more than five public sector companies and listed companies
simultancously, except their subsidianios. 3(5)

4. The appointing authorities have applied the fit and proper criteria T
given in the Annexure to the Rules in making nominations of the
persons for election as Board members under the provisions of the

Act

5 | The chairman of the Board is working separately from the chief executive 4(1)
of the Company.

] The chairman has been elected by the Board of directors. 4{4)

7 The Board has evaluated the candidates for the position of the chief 3(2)
execulive on the basis of the fit and proper criteria as well as the guidelines
specified by the Commission.

«| «| ¢| ¢ ¢«

a (a) The company has prepared a "Code of Conducl” lo ensure thal 5(4)
professional standards and corporate values are in place.

14
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Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 & Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

5. No. | Provision of the Rules Rule no.| Y I M
Tick the relevant box

(b} The Board has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the company along with ils supparling policies
and procedures, including posting the same on the company's websie.
(www sindhmaodarabaltd.com)

{¢) The Board has set in place adequate systems and conlrols for the
identification and redressal of grievances ansing from unethical practices.

& The Board has established a system of sound internal conirel, 1o ensura 55) v/
compliance with the fundamental principles of probity and propriety,

ohjectivity, mtegrity and honesty; and relationship with the stakeholders,
in the manner prescribed in the Rules.

The Board has developed and enforced an appropriate conflict of interest
10. | policy to lay down circumstances or considerations when a person may S(5)(b) v‘/
be deemed to have actual or potential conflict of interesis, and the procedure {ii)
for disclosing such inlerest.

11. | The Board has developad and implemented a policy on anti-corruption 5(5)(b) "U"’
to mimimize actual or percened corrupbon in the company. (i)

12. | The Board has ensured equality of opportunity by establishing open and 5 3)(c) ‘/—
fair procedures for making appointments and for determining terms and (i)
conditions of semvice,

13. | The Board has ensured compliance with the law as well as the company’s H5)(c) v{'
internal rules and procedures relating o public procurement, tender {11)]
reguialions, and purchasing and technical standards, when dealing with
suppliers of goods and services.

14. | The Board has developed a vision or mission statemant and corporate 5(6) v/
strategy of the company.

15. | The Board has developed significant policies of the company. A 5(7) g
complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates
on which they were approved or amended, has been maintained.

16. | The Board has quantified the outlay of any action in respect of any service 5(8)
delivered or goods sold by the Company as a public service cbiigation, NA
and has submitted ils request for appropriate compensation o the
Gevernment for consideration

17. | The Board has ensured compliance with policy directions requirements 5{(11)

received from the Government, A

15
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Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 & Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

5. No. | Provision of the Rules Rule no.| Y I M
Tick the relevant box

18. a) The Board has met at least four times during the year, E(1)

b} Whitten notices of the Board meetings, along with agenda and working B(2)
papers, were circulaled at least seven days before the meetings.

¢} The minutes of the meelings were appropriately recorded and circulated. B(3)

18, The Board has monitored and assessed the performance of senior 8(2)
management on annual basis and held them accountable for accomplishing
objectives, goals and key performance indicators set for this purpose.

S N SIS

20 The Board has reviewed and approved the relaled parly fransactions -
placed before it after recommendabions of the audt committes, A party
wise record of iransaclions enlered inlo with the relaled parties during the
year has been maintained

21. a) The Board has approved the profit and loss account for, and balance 10
sheet as at the end of, the first, second and third quarter of the year
as well as the financial year end.

b} Incase of listed PSCs, the Board has prepared half yearly accounts
and undertaken Emited scope réview by the auditors.

¢) The Board has placed the annual financial statements on the company's
websiie

22, All the Board members undersent an orientation course arranged by the 11
company o apprise them of the material developments and information
as specified in the Rules.

23. a) The Board has formed the requisite cormmitiees, as specfied in the Rules. 12

b) The committess were provided with wntten term of reference
defining their duties, authority and composition

¢} The minutes of the meetings of the committees were circulated to all
the Board members.

R

d) The commitiees were chaired by the fellowing non-executve direclors

Committee mh:;: Name of Chair
Audit Commitiee 2 Rehan Anjum
Risk Managanant 3 Waseam Mehdi Syad
Committes
Human Resources 3 Wasearn Mehdi Syad
Committes
Procurement 2 Sami ul Hag Khilp
Commitiee
MNomination Commties 3 Sa)d Jamal Abrg

24, The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company 13 'V/
Secretary and Chiefl Internal Auditor, by whatever name called, with their
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment

16
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Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 & Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

5. No. | Provision of the Rules Ruleno.| ¥ I N
Tick the relevant box

25. | The Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary have requisite

gualification prescribed in the Rules. 14 ‘(
26. | The company has adopled International Financial Reporting Standards
notified by the Commission in terms of sub-section (1) of section 225 of 16 Vf
the Act
27. | The directors’ report for this year has been prepared in compliance with 17 “

the requirements of the Act and the Rules and fully describes the salient
mallers required 1o be disclosed.

28. | Thedireclors, CEQ and executives, or their relatives, are not, directly or 18
indirectly, concerned or interested in any contract or arrangement entered
into by or on behall of the company except those disclosad to the company.,

<

28. | a) A formal and ransparent procedure for fixing the remunearation

packages of individual directors has been set in place and no director 19

is involved in deciding his own remuneration. NIA

b) The annual report of the company contains criteria and details of
remuneraton of each director,

30. | The financial statements of the company were duly endorsed by the chief 20 v
executive and chief financial officer before consideration and approval of
the audit committee and the Board.

31. | The Board has formed an audit committee, with defined and written | 21(1) v
terms of reference, and having the following members: and

21{2) V/

Name of member Category Professional background

Mr. Rehan Anjum Mon-executve | Professional Banker
Ms. Rukhsana Marejo Mon-executve | Professional Banker

The chief executive and chairman of the Board are not members of
the audit committes,

32. |a) Thechief financiad officer, the chief inlernal auditor, and a representalive 21(3) ‘(‘
of the external auditors attended all meetings of the audit committee
al which issues relating to accounts and audit were discussed.

B}  The audit committee met the external auddors, at least once a year,
without the presence of the chief financial officer, the chief internal
auditor and other executives.

<

)  The audit committee met the chief intemal auditor and other members v/
of the internal audit function, at least once a year, without the presence
of chief financial officer and the external auditors.

17
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SINDH MODARABA

Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 & Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

5. No.

Provision of the Rules Rulenoc.| Y I N
Tick the relevant box

33

a) The Board has set up an effective internal audt function, which has 22
an alidit charter, duly approved by the audit committes,

B} The chief internal avditor has requisite qualification and expenance
prescribed in the Rules.

¢l  The imernal audit reports have been provided fo the external avditors

v
v
for their review v
v

The external auditors of the company have confirmed that the firm 23{4)
and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on Code of Ethics as applicable in
Pakistan.

35,

The auditors have confirmed that they have cbserved applicable 23 5) V/
guidefines |ssued by IFAC with regard to provision of non-audit
Senvices,

CERTAIN ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES REQUIRED UNDER CCG

All the directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment of any loan to a
banking company, a DFl or an NBF| or, being a member of a stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that stock

gxchange.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on maierial transactions, including appointment and
determination of remunaration and terms and conditions of employment of the CEQ, other executive and non-axecutiva
directors, have been taken by the Board

The ‘closed period’, prior to the announcement of interimfinal results, and business decisions, which may materially affect
tha markat price of Modaraba's certificates, was determinad and intimated to directors, employeas and stock axchange,

Matenal'price sansitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at once through stock exchange.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality
Contro! Review program of the ICAR, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not
hald shares of the company

The Company has compled with the requirements relating o mantenance of registar of persons having inside information
by designated senior management officer in a timely manner and maintained proper record including basis for inclusion or
axclusion of names of parsons from the said hist,

(On behalf of the Board)
NM A
Ishfaque Ahmed Waseem Mehdi Syed
Chief Executive Officer Chairman/ndependent Director

Karachi:
21 Seplember 2023
18
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Schedule Il

Explanation for Non-Compliance with the Public Sector Companies
(Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

We confirm that all other material requirements envisaged in the Rules have been complied with.
[except for the following, toward which reasonable progress is being made by the company to
seek compliance by the end of next accounting year]:

Sr. Rule/sub- Reasons for non-compliance Future course of action
No rule no.
1. 3(2) & 21(1) | Death/Demise of one independent | The company is in the
director. process of appointing a suitable
candidate in his place and will
be complied soon.

(On behalf of the Board)

Nmm.‘.. At
Ishfaque Ahmed Waseem Mehdi Syed
Chief Executive Officer Chairman/independent Director

Karachi:

21 September 2023
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Shari’ah Advisors Report

f
AT W
| have conducted the Shari'ah review of Sindh Modaraba managed by Sindh Modaraba Management Limited for the
financial year ended June 2023 in accordance with the requirements of the Shari'ah Compliance and Shari‘ah Audit

Mechanism for Modarabas issued by SECP and report that excepl the observations as reported hereunder, in my
opinion;

I, The Modaraba has introduced a mechanism which has sirengthened the Shari'ah compliance, in letter and
spirit and the systems. procedures and policies adopted by the Moedaraba are in line with the Shariah principles:

i Dumng the year, the financings ware mainly done on Diminishing Musharakah mode which is a Shariah Compliant
made of financing.

The Modaraba has organized trainings on the |slamic Law of Contract and its practical implementation &
challenges in the modern day financial industry,

ili. The agreement(s) entered into by the Modaraba during the period are Shari'ah compliant and the financing
agreemeni(s) have been executed on the formals as approved by the Religious Board of SECP and all the
related condilions have been mel;

iw. To the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, the business transactions
undertaken by the Modaraba and all other malters incidental thereto are in conformity with the Shari'ah
reguirements as well as the requirements of the Prospeclus, lslamic Financial Accounling Standards as applicable
in Pakistan, specific AADIF| Shariah Standards which have been adopted by SECP and the Sharah Compliance
& Sharrah Audit Regulations for Modarabas

¥. The Modaraba does not have any deposit raising product at the moment, therefore no profit sharing ratios,
profits and charging of losses (if any) relating to any deposit raising product apply.

vi. Mo eamings have been realized from the sources or by means prohibiled by Shari'ah.
Notes

During the year, an amount of Rs. 3,665,363/- has been realized as charity on accoun! of defay in payment by customers
and Modaraba has made charity of Rs. 1.400.000/- recognized charitable institution

Recommendation

Several trainings have been conducted on Islamic Finance & its products. However, It iIs recommended that Modaraba
should organize more trainings for capacity building of its staff and management.

Conclusion

In my opinion and to the best of my knowledge and information provided by the Modaraba, | am of the view that during
the period overall business aclivities of the Modaraba are Shariah Compliant.

And Allah knows baest,

Mufti Zeeshan Abdul Aziz
Shari'ah Advisor

Sindh Modaraba

Dated: 03.08-2023
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Auditors’ Review Report To The Members On The Statement Of Compliance
With The Listed Companies (Code Of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019 And Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the besl practices contained in the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and Public Sector Companies (Corporate
Govemnance) Rules, 2013 (both hereinafter referred to as 'Codes’) prepared by the Board of Directors of
Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (the Managemeni Company) for the year ended June 30, 2023 to
comply with the requirements of regulation 36 of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 and the provisions of Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code and the Rules is that of the Board of the Management
Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified,
whether the Statement of Compliance reflecls the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions
of the Rules and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Code
or the Rules. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Management Company's personnel and review
of various documents prepared by the Management Company to comply with the Code and the Rules.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an eflective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the Board's statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form
an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Modaraba's corporate governance procedures
and risks.

Further, the Code and the Rules requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval
its related party transaclions distinguishing between transaclions carried out on terms equivalent to those
that prevail in arm's length transaclions and transaclions which are not executed at arm's length price and
recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism, Further, all such transactions are
also required to be separately placed before the audit committee. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related parly transactions by the Board
of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to
determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Modaraba's compliance, in all material respects, with the best
practices contained in the Code and the Rules as applicable to the Modaraba for the year ended June 30,
2023,

Further, we highlight instance of non-compliance with the requirements of the Rules as reflected in Schedule
Il to the annexed Statement of Compliance.

Place : Karachi. Baker Tilly Mehmood ldrees Qamar
Date: 27 September 2023 Chartered Accounlants
UDIN: CR202310151AOFRQJCSB Mehmood A. Razzak

Engagement Partner
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Auditors’ Report To The Certificate Holders

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of SINDH MODARABA (the Modaraba) as at
June 30, 2023 and the related profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow
statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof (here in afler
referred to as the financial statements), for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, 1o the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes
of our audit,

These financial stalements are the Modaraba Management Company's [Sindh Modaraba Management
Limited] responsibility who is also responsible to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and
prepare and present the above said statements in conformily with the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and
Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXX of 1280}, and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these stalemenls based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial stalements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting policies and significant estimates made by the Management Company in respect of the Sindh
Modaraba, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. Ve believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

a) in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Modaraba Company in respect of
the Sindh Modaraba as required by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control)
Ordinance, 1980 (XXXl of 1980), and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981;

b} in our opinion:

i} the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn
up in conformity with the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance,
1980 (XXX of 1980), and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules 1981, and are in
agreement with the books of accounts and are further in agreement with accounting policies
consistently applied;

i) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Modaraba's business; and

iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were
accordance with the objects, terms and conditions of the Modaraba.

3] in our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
balance sheet, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement
and slatement of changes in equity logether with the notes farming parl thereof conform with the
approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the information required by the
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXX! of 1980), and
the Modaraba Companias and Modaraba Rules, 1981, in the manner so required and respeclively
give a true and fair view of the state of Modaraba's affairs as at June 30, 2023 and of the profit, other
comprehensive loss, cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

d) in our opinion, £akat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVII of 1280),

was deducted b}f the Modaraba and depr::sited in the Central Zakat Fund established under seclion
7 of that Ordinance.

Place : Karachi. Baker Tilly Mehmood ldrees Qamar

Date: 27 September 2023 Chartered Accountants

UDIN: AR20231015141yrusEbA Mehmood A. Razzak
Engagement Partner
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and bank balances

Short term investments

Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Current portion of Diminishing Musharaka
Currenl portion of long term loan

Total current assets

Non - current assets
Diminishing Musharaka
Long term loan

ljarah assels

Fixed assets - in own use
Total non - current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND CERTIFICATE HOLDERS® EQUITY
Current liabilities

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

Taxation - net

Profit distribution payable

TOTAL LIABILITIES

CERTIFICATE HOLDERS' EQUITY
Authorized certilicate capilal

Issued, subscribed and paid-up certificate capital

Reserves
Long term loan

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Contingencies and commitments

Note

@G~

.
2wwm~

12
12

13
14

15

June 30, 2023

182,076,260
700,000,000
28,738,060
369,662,127
431,600

1,280,808,047

494,229,740
1,222,862

1,972,843

497,425,445

1,778,233,492

44,381,187
10,555,612
929,481

55,866,280

500,000,000

450,000,000
272,367,212
1,000,000,000

1,722,367,212

1,778,233,492

The annexed notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

e ki

Rupees

For Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (Management Company)

NMW

\
SINDH MODARABA

June 30, 2022

494,176,101
320,000,000
20933411
338,062,224
809,600

1,173,981,336

505,645,798
2,378,966

2,578,628

510,603,392

1,684.584,728

33,269,664
4,578,170
787,924

38,635,758

500,000,000

450,000,000
195,948,970
1,000,000.000

1,645,948 970

1,684,584,728

bt

Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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Director

Chief Financial Officer
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

Note Rupees
Income from:
- Diminishing Musharaka 162,281,756 94 065,161
- Bank deposits 45,458,962 46,726,622
- Termn deposit receipts 71,924,091 26,230,165
279,664,809 167,021,948
Administrative and operating expenses 16 (64,092,024) (40,887,729)
Reversal / (provision) for doubtful receivables 17 2,547,401 (13,259,015)
(61,544,623) (54,146,744)
218,120,186 112,875,204
Other incomea - nel 18 1,242,911 646,965
219,363,087 113,522,169
Modaraba Management Company’s remuneration 19 {21,936,310) (11,352.217)

Provision for Sindh Sales Tax on Management (2,851,720) (1,475,788)
Company’s remuneration (24,788,030) (12,828,005)
Profit before taxation 194,575,067 100,694,164
Taxation 20 (64,164,207) (34,380,942)
Profit for the year m T 66,313,222
Eamings per certificate - basic and diluted 21 2.20 147

The annexed notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statemenis.

For Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (Management Company)

NMW éff

Chairman

Chief Executive Officer
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
Rupees
Profit for the year 130,410,860 66,313,222
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
- items that may be reclassified to profit and loss account - -
- items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account -
subsequently
Actuarial gain / (loss) on defined benefit plan 7,382 {421,216)
Total comprehensive income for the year 130,418,242 65,892,006

The annexed notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (Management Company)

Chairman Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Mote

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for non - cash and other items

Depreciation on fixed assets - in own use 10.7
Amortization of intangible assets 10.2
(Reversal) / Provision for doubtiul receivables 17
Income suspended in respect of diminishing musharaka

Income on bank deposils

Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Income on term deposil receipls

Provision for gratuity

Operating losses before working capital changes

Working capital changes

(Increase) [ decrease in current assets
Advances, prepayments and other receivables

Diminishing Musharaka

Long term loan

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

Customers' securily deposil

Working capital changes

Income received on term deposit receipts
Income received aon bank deposils

Gratuily contribution paid

Taxes paid

11.3

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Sale proceeds from disposal of ijarah assels

Sale proceeds from disposal of fixed assets

Purchase of tangible assets-owned 70.7
Purchase of intangible assels-owned 10.2
Net cash (used in) / generated frem investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Profit distributed

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 30

June 30, 2023

194,575,067

77,664
(2,547,401)
2,758,341
(45,458,862)
(232,568)
(71,924,091)
1,048,658

et SR RRE RS UL L R

o
SINDH MODARABA

June 30, 2022

100,694,164

1,248,965

(115,029,394)

1,431,881
74,904
13,259,015
3,289 512
(46,726,622)

(26,230,163)
676213

(7,796,828)

(17.536,444)
1,534,104
3,798,2

(54,225,262)

(16,866,565)
(42,354, 526)
(1.708.066)

11,167,676

[60.929,157)

5,803 765

11,167,676

~(12,631,592)

71,617,242
42,899,749
(1,097,429)
(58,186,765)

122,246,878

(5,005,000}

(59,130,392)

28270713
44 662 960
(1,070,048)

59,202 135

234,602
(722,878)

5,005,000
(670,101)

(488,278)

(S5

67,900,159
814,176,101
882,076,260

The annexed notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

(19.890)

4 315,009

(44 885 334)
(44.865,334)
18,651,810

785,524 291
814176101

For Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (Management Company)

>
NW{M- i % ] ‘K/,i’{ //
Chairman Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
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Issued,
subrscribed, and | [Capital reserve| | Revenus reserve Tortal equity
paid-up _%_w Total reserves | | 0N ET L0 | o nd reserves
certificate copital nEserve profit
Rupeas
Balance as al June 30, 2021 450,000,000 121,071,504 53,985 480 175,058 504 1,000,000, 000 1,625,056 964
Frofit for the year E - 86 313 222 86 313,222 - B8 313222
Ciher comprehenshve income / (loss) . (421.2186) (421.216) . (421.216)
Transfer to statubory neserve - 13.262 644 [13,262.644) . ¥ =
Transaction with Certificate Holders
“Profi dsinbotion for B vear ended June 30, 2021 (45000.000)  (45.000,000) - (45,000 000y
alRs. 1{10%) per certificate”
Balance as at June 30, 2022 450 000,000 134,334,148 61,614,822 195048970  1,000,000,000 1,645,048 670
Prafit for the year - - 130,410,860 130,410,860 - 130,410,860
Cther comprehensive mcome J (Toss) - - 7282 7,382 - 7,382
Transfer to statutory feserve - 26,082,172 (26,082,172) - - -
Transaction with Certificate Holders
“Profl distnbubon for the yeor ended June 30, 2022
atRs. 1.2 (12%) per certifcatls” - - {54, 000, 0040 | 54,000, 000) - {54,000, 000)
Balance as at Jung 30, 2023 ASD Q0 (0 160,498,220 111,050,892 22367 212 1.000.000,000  4.722 367,212

The anrexed notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (Management Company)

NMW

bt

S

Chairman

Chief Executive Officer
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2.3

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Sindh Modaraba (the Modaraba) has been floated under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba
(Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 and the Rules framed thereunder and is managed by Sindh
Modaraba Management Limiled (the Management Company ), which is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Government of Sindh. The registered office of the Modaraba is situated at 1st Floor, Imperial Court,
Cir. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi.

The Modaraba is a perpetual, multi-purpose and multi-dimensional Modaraba and is primarily engaged
in providing Shariah compliant financing facilities to credit worthy customers. The Modaraba is listed
on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has maintained long term rating of A+ and short term rating
of A-1 to the Modaraba. Outlook on the assigned rating is 'Stable’.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporling standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017, the Islamic Financial Accounting
Standards (IFASs) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, the requirements of
the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, the Modaraba
Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Prudential Regulations for Modarabas and the directives issued
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Wherever provisions of and direclives
issued under the Companies Act, 2017, the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Fleatation and
Control) Ordinance, 1980, the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Prudential Regulations
for Modaraba and the Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs) differ from the IFRS Standards,
the provision of and directives issues under the Companies Act, 2017, the Modaraba Companies and
Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules,
1981, Modaraba Regulations for Medaraba and the Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs)
have been followed.

During the current year, the SECP has deferred the applicability of all requirements of IFRS 3 for
modarabas uptil June 30, 2024. The Modaraba had already adopted all the requirements of IFRS 9 in
the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019 with the exception of determining the provision
against financing portfolio. The provision against financing portfolio has been determined in accordance
with the requirements of Modaraba Regulations issued by the SECP.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for recognition
of staff retirement benefits al present value based on actuarial valuation at the balance sheel date.

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial stalements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Modaraba operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani

Rupees, which is the Modaraba's functional and presentational currency. Figures have been rounded
off to the nearest Rupee, unless stated otherwise.
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2.5

251

Use of significant estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires
the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assels and liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise judgment in
application of the Modaraba's accounting policies. The estimates, judgments and associated assumptions
are based on the management's experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. These estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and fulure periods if the revision affects both
the current and fulure periods. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to
the Modaraba's financial statements or where judgment was exercised in the application of accounting
policies are as follows:

a) estimates of residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods of fixed assets in own use
(note 3.3) and ljarah assels (note 3.4);

b) estimates of useful lives and amortization charge for its intangibles (note 3.3.2)

¢) certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in these financial statement for
actuarial valuation of present value of defined benefit obligation (note 3.11);

d) investments & loans, advances, prepayments and other receivables (note 3.1 and 3.6); and

e) provision for taxation (note 3.7).

New and amended standards and interpretations

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that
are effective and relevant

There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are
mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2022, However, these do not have any
significant impact on the Modaraba's financial statements.

Effective date
IAS 16 Proceeds before an asset's intended use January 01, 2022

Amendment to IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ prehibit a company from deducting from the cost
of property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is
preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, a company will recognise such sales proceeds and
related cost in profit or loss. The amendments apply retrospectively, but only to items of PPE made
available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements
in which lhe company first applies the amendmenls,

The other new standards, amendmenis to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are

mandatory for the financial year beginning on or after July 01, 2023 are considered not to be relevant
or to have any significant effect on the Company's financial reporing and operations.
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3.1

311

3.1.2

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that
are not yet effective

The new standard, ceriain amendments and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting periods
beginning after January 01, 2023 are considered not to be relevant for the Modaraba's financial
statements.

Effective date
IAS 1 Disclosure of accounting policies January 01, 2023
IAS 8 Definition of accounting estimates January 01, 2023
IAS 12 Deferred tax January 01, 2023
1AS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current January 01, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted and applied in the preparation of these financial statements
as sel oul below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented unless other
wise stated.

Financial instruments

Recognition, Initial measurement and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Modaraba becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measurad initially at fair value adjusted for
transactions costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured

initially at fair value.

"Financial assels are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred.”

A financial liability is derecognized when il is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or has expired.
Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if the assets meet the following conditions (and are
not designated as FVTPL}:

- they are held within a business model whose abhjective is to hold the financial assets and collect
its contractual cash flows:

- the contractual terms of the financial assels give rise to cash flows thal are solely payments of
principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective profit rate method.

Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The Modaraba's cash and cash
equivalents and short term investments fall into this category of financial instrumenis.
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3.1.4 Impairment of financial assets

315

3.1.6

3.2

IFRS 9's impairment requirements use more forward-locking information to recognize expected credit
losses - the ‘expected credit loss (ECL) model'. This replaces |AS 39's 'incurred loss model'. Instruments
within the scope of the new requirements included loans and other debt-type financial assets measured
at amortized cost and FVTOCI that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Recoegnition of credit losses is no longer dependent on the Modaraba first identifying a credit loss event.
Instead the Modaraba considers a broader range of information when assessing credit risk and measuring
expected credit losses, including past events, current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts
that affect the expected collectability of the future cash flows of the instrument.
"In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made between:"
"financial instruments that have not detericrated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition
or that have low credit risk {'Stage 17} and”
- "financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition
and whose credit risk is not low ('Stage 2°)."
"Stage 3" would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.”

12-month expecled credit losses’ are recognized for the first category while ‘lifetime expected credit
losses’ are recognized for the second and third category.

Measurement of the expected credit losses is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses over the expected life of the financial instrument,

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, amount due to a related party and borrowings.

"Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective profit rate method.
Discounting is omitted if the impact is immaterial.”

Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial
statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at amortized cost. These include balances
with banks in deposit and current accounts, short term investment and stamps in hand.
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33.2

333

Fixed assets - In own use
Tangible assets

These are stated at cosl less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, il any.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly aftributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs
are included in the assels carrying amounts or recognized as separate assels, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the Modaraba
and the cost of the items can be measured reliably.

All other repairs and mainlenance expenses are charged to the profit and loss account as and when
incurred. Depreciation on all fixed assets is charged to income on a straight - line basis in accordance
with the specified rates.

The useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting
date. Depreciation is charged on additions from the month the asset is available for use and on disposals
upto the month preceding the month of disposal.

Gains and losses on disposals are delermined by comparing the sale proceeds with the carrying
amounts. These are recorded in the profit and loss account in the period in which these arise.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subseguent costs are included in the assels’ cammying amounts
or recognized as separale assels, as appropriate, only where it is probable thal the future economic
benefits associated with the assets will flow to the Modaraba and the cost of the items can be measured
reliably.

Amortization is charged to income using the straight line method in accordance with the specified rates.
The useful lives and amortizalion method are reviewed and adjusled, as appropriate, at each reporting
date. Amortization is charged from the month the asset is available for use while in the case of assets
disposed of, it is charged till the month preceding the month of disposal.

Intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Gain or loss on disposal of intangible assets, if any, is taken lo the profit and loss account in the period
in which these arise.

Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-pragress, if any, is stated at cos! less accumulaled impairment losses, if any, and
represents expenditure on fixed assets in the course of installation and advances for capilal expendilure.

Transfers are made to the relevant category of tangiblefintangible assets as and when the assets are
available for intended use.
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3.7

ljarah assets given to customers under agreement

Assets leased out under ljarah are recorded as ljarah assets and are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any ). Depreciation is charged lo income by applying
the straight line method whereby the cost of an asset less salvage value is written off over the lease
term, which is considered lo be the estimated useful life of the asset.

- Muj’ir (lessors) presents the assets subject to ljarah in their balance sheet according to the nature
of the asset, distinguished from the assets in own use.

- Costs, including depreciation on the assets given on ljarah, incurred in earning the ljarah income
are recognized as expenses.

- Initial direct costs incurred specifically to eam revenues from ljarah are recognized as an expense
in the profit and loss account in the period in which they are incurred.

Murabaha Finance

Funds disbursed for purchase of goods are recorded as 'Advance for Murabaha', On culmination of
Murabaha i.e. sale of goods lo customers, Murabaha financings are recorded at the deferred sale price.
Goods Purchased but remaining unsold at the balances sheel date are recorded as inventories. Profit
on Murabaha Financings is recognized on accrual basis. Profit on Murabaha transactions for the period
from the date of disbursement to the date of culmination of Murabaha is recognized immediately upon
the later date. Profit uneamed at balance sheet date is deferred and recorded as deferred murabaha
income. Financing are stated nel of specific and general Provisions against non- performing financings,
if any, which are charged to the profit and loss account.

Loans, advances, prepayments and other receivables

These are stated at cost less estimates made for doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding
amounts at the reporting date. Balances considered bad and imecoverable are written off when identified.

Taxation

Current
Provision for current taxation is based on laxable income for the year al the current rates of taxation
after taking into account applicable tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases and camying amounts of assets and liabilities appearing in the financial staterents.
Deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax asset is recognized
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the future and taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences
can be ulilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed al each reporting date and reduced to the extent

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized.
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3.9

3.10

N

3.12

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Modaraba's assels are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment loss. Impairment loss determined as the difference between
carrying value and recoverable amount being higher of asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in
use. If such an indication exists, the assets' recoverable amounts are estimated in order to determine
the extent of impairment lpss. The resulting impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss account

Creditors, accrued and other liabilities

These are carried at amortized cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future
for goods and services.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Modaraba has a presenl. legal or construclive obligation as a result
of past obligating events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.
Provisions are reviewed al each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Provision is maintained as per the regulatory requirement or 0.5% of the ijarah rental receivables,

murabaha finance and diminishing musharaka, whichever is higher. Such provision is chamged to profit
and loss account.

Staff retirement benefits
Defined contribution plan - employees provident fund

The Modaraba operates a recognized provident fund for all eligible employees and equal contributions
by the employer and employee to the provident fund are made at the rate of 10% of the basic salaries
of employees.

Defined benefit plan - employees gratuity fund

The Modaraba operates a gratuity fund for all eligible employees who have completed the minimum
three years of service. The fund is administered by the trustee nominated under the Trust Deed. The
contributions to the Fund are made in accordance with the acluarial valuation using Projected Unit
Credil Method. Actuarial gains and losses arising at each valuation dale are recognized immediataly.

Revenue recognition

The revenue recognition of the Modaraba is based on the following policies:
For ljarah arrangements, ljarah rentals are recognized as income on accrual basis, as and when
rentals become due. In case of ljarah arrangements with staggered rentals, the income is recognized
on a straight line basis over the ljarah term.

- Income in respect of non-performing ljarah finance is held in suspense account, where necessary,

in accordance wilth the requirements of the Prudential Regulations for Modarabas issued by the
SECP.
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3.14

3.15

3.16

317

3.18

- Documentation charges, front end fees and other ljarah related income are taken to the profit and
loss account on an accrual basis.

- Profit on Diminishing Musharaka arrangements is recognized under the effective mark-up rate
method based on the Amount outstanding.

- Mark-up / relum on deposits / investments is recognized on accrual basis using the effective profit
rate method.

- Other income is recognized on an accrual basis.
Proposed profit distribution to certificate holders

Dividends declared made subsequent to the reporting date are consideraed as non-adjusling events and
are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which such dividends are declared.

Earnings per certificate

Basic eamings per certificate is calculated by dividing the profit after taxation for the period by the
weighted average number of cerlificales oulslanding during the period. Diluted earnings per certificate
is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary certificate holders by taking into
account the conversion of any dilutive potential ordinary certificates.

Foreign currency transactions

Transaclions in foreign currencies are converted into Pakistani Rupees al the rate of exchange prevailing
on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into
Pakistani Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates are recognized in the profil and loss account.

Segment reporting

As per IFRS 8: "Operating Segments”, segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal
raporting used by the chiefl operaling decision-maker. The Chiefl Executive Officer has been identified
as the chisef operaling decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the Modaraba's
entire product portfolio and considers the business to have a single operaling segment.

The Modaraba's asset allocation decisions are based on a single integrated investment strategy and
the Modaraba's performance is evaluated on an overall basis.

Related party transactions

All transactions with related parly are priced on arm’s length basis. Prices of lhese transactions are
determined on the basis of admissible valuation methods.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the Modaraba's right to receive dividend is establishad.
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3.13 ljarah rental receivable
These are stated at amount recoverable net of provision (if any).
3.20 Compensated absences

The Modaraba makes provision in the financial statements for its liability towards compensated absences
based on the leaves accumulated upto the balance sheet dale.

2023 2022
4. CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note  -weeeeseeeeeeee RUpEES =mmssememmemmeen
Stamp papers in hand 62,600 72,700
Balances with banks:
- on deposit accounis 4.1 178,235,009 492 734 368
on current accounts 4.2 3,778,651 1,369,033
182,076,260 484 176,104

4.1  These camry profit at rates ranging from 4.25% to 18.50% per annum. {2022: 5.50% to 11% per annumy)
This includes a balance of Rs. 9.66 million (2022: Rs. 483.51 million) held with Sindh Bank Limited -
Islamic Banking Unit, a related party.

4.2  This includes a balance of Rs. 3,755,470 (2022: Rs. 1,294, 517) held with Sindh Bank Limited - Islamic
Banking Unit, a related party.

2023 2022
Note -——------—— Rupees -—-—--—-———-—-
5. SHORT TEEM INVESTMENTS
Term deposit receipts 5.1 700,000,000 320,000,000
Em—e——— =

5.1  This represents investment made in Term Deposit Receipts with Soneri Bank Limited - Islamic Banking,
for a panod of 3 months profit at maturity at the mark-up rate of 19.50% per annum (June 2022: Rs.320
million in Meezan Bank Limited - Islamic Banking, for a perod of 6 months maturty on a menthly rollover
basis al the mark-up rate of 12.25% per annum).

2023 2022
Mote  eeeeememeeeee Rupees -—--s——eeeeee
6. ADVAMNCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advances 6.1 8,461,900 7,562,220
Prepayments 1,241,275 744 855
Accrued income from bank deposils 6.2 7,753,931 5,204 718
Accrued income from term deposil receipls 2,991,781 2 684,932
Accrued income from Diminishing Musharaka 6.3 8,289,173 4,638,686
Other receivables - 8,000
28,738,060 20,933,411

T T
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6.2

6.3

71

7.2

7.21

This includes advance to vendors in respect of the acquisition of assets under the Diminishing Musharaka
arrangement for onward delivery to the lessee (customer) amounting to Rs. 8.45 million (2022: Rs. 1.55
million]).

This includes accrued income of Rs. 813,626 (2022: Rs. 5,245,596) on bank depasits held with Sindh
Bank Limited - Islamic Banking Unit, related party.

2023 2022
Accrued income from Diminishing Musharaka e el 411+ -T2 - Rt
Receivable 28,175,443 21,766,615
Less. Income suspend (19,886,270) (17.,127,929)
8,289,173 4,638,686
2023 2022
DIMINISHING MUSHARAKA Note  ——eemeeeeeee RUPEES =mrmmmmememaans
Receivables - secured 7.1 919,465,142 901,928.698
Less: Current portion {369,562,127) {338,062,224)
Less:  Provision in respect of diminishing musharaka 7.2 (55,673,275) (58,220,676)
Mon-current partion 494,229,740 505,645,798

This represents finance provided to Individual and Corporate clients under Diminishing Musharaka
arrangements for periods ranging 3 to 20 years (2022: 3 to 20 years) which is secured against mortgage
of property, lien on litle documents and charge on assets elc.

This includes a general provision of Rs.3.93 million (2022: Rs.3.96 million) made at the rate of 0.5%
(2022: 0.5%) on diminishing musharaka receivables respectively.

Movement in provision in respect of Diminishing Musharakah

2023 2022
General Specific  Total General Specific  Total
Rupees
Cpening 3955800 54,264,776 58,220,676 3,604,102 41267559 44,961,661
Charge for the year - - - 261,798 15,118,146 15,379,944
Reversal during the year  (22,849) (2,524 452) (2,547 401) - (2,120,929) (2,120,929)
Closing 3,832,951 51,740,324 55,673,275 3,955,900 54,264,776 58,220,676
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2023 2022
8. LONG TERM LOAN Note — =sseececseneee RUPEES  =eesemecemsesees
Long term loan - considered good 8.1 1,654,462 3,188,566
Less: Current portion of long term loan (431,600) {809,600)
1,222,862 2,378,966

8.1 This represents the car loan provided to Mr. Adnan Shakeel - CFO & Co. Secretary (2022: 2.086 million
and Rs.1.102 million against the car loan provided to Mr. Adnan Shakeel - CFO & Co, Secretary and Mr.
Kailash Moolani - Chief Internal Auditor respeclively), related parties in accordance with the Monetization
Policy approved by the Board.

9. IJARAH ASSETS

June 30, 2023
Cost Depreciation
Het book | Depreclation
As at July As at June | As at July Charge for As at June
Particulars
01,2022 DISPOSAIE " op onay | 01,2022  theyear 30,2023 | VAlU® e
Rupaes
Plant and machinary - - - - = = = 33.33%
Vehicles - - - . - - - 20%
June 30, 2022
Cost Depreciation
Met book | Depreciation
As at July As at June | As at July Charge for As at June
Particulars
01,2021 DOISPOSAIS 9p apan | 94,2021  theyesr 30,2022 | VAlUe s
Rupees
Flant and machinery 80,000,000 - - T5/000.00:0 . - - 33.33%
{60,000,000) (75,000,000)
Vehicles 10,571,500 - - 10,566,500 . - - 20%
{10.571.500) {10,566 500)
%0,571,500 - - 85,568,500 - - -
{30,571.500) {85,566,500)

9.1 The Modaraba has entered into ljarah arrangements for periods ranging from Nil [2022: 3 to 5 years)
against which security deposits were obtained at the time of disbursement.
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June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
10. FIXED ASSETS - In own use Note  =eescscscsccses RUPEES =sescessmesees
Tangible assets 10.1 1,945,687 2,473,608
Intangible assets 10.2 27,156 104,820
h1,'.il'.-l'2,B43 ‘E.EEE.E-IEE
10.1 TANGIBLE ASSETS Computer
Fumiture Office Vehicles arlljd Total
and fittings | equipment accessories
Rupees
As at June 30, 2021
Cost 1,536,245 3,272,641 1354275 3153719 8,316,880
Accumulated depreciation {795,534) (2.481,057) (545058) (2,258,743) (6.081,292)
Net book value 740,711 791 584 808 317 B94 076 3,235 588
Net carrying value basis
Year ended June 30, 2022
Opening nel book value 740,711 791,584 808,317 B934 976 3,235,588
Additions - at cost - 19,845 - 650,206 670,101
Depreciation charge (153,624) (467,172) (262,152) (548,933) (1,431,881)
Closing net book value 587,087 344 307 548,165 006,249 2473808
Gross carrying value basis
As at June 30, 2022
Cost 1,536,245 3,292,536 1354275 3,803,825 9,986,981
Accumulated depreciation {949,158) (2,948,229) (808,110) (2,807.676) (7,513,173)
Net book value 587,087 344 307 546,165 095,249 2473 BO8
Net carrying value basis
Year ended June 30, 2023
Opening nel book value 587,087 344 307 546,165 996,249 2,473,808
Additions - at cost 28,972 272,040 = 421,866 722 878
Disposal
Cost - (591,336) - (1,210,995) (1,802,331)
Accumulated depreciation 589,314 - 1,210,983 1,800,297
- (2,022) - (12) {2,034)
Depreciation charge {156,034) (219.470) (262,152) (611,309) (1,248,965)
Closing net book value 460,025 394,855 284,013 806,794 1,945,687
Gross carrying value basis
As at June 30, 2023
Cosl 1,565,217 2,973,240 1,354,275 3,014,796 §,907,528
Accumulated depreciation (1,105,192) (2,578,385) (1,070,262) (2,208,002) (6,961,841)
Net book value 460,025 394 855 284,013 806,794 1,945,637
Depreciation (% per annum) 10% 20% 20% 33.33%
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10.2 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Almanac Software
Website software licenses Total
Rupees
As at June 30, 2021
Cost 37,647 800,000 1,254 445 2092092
Accumulated amortization (37.646) (799.,999) (1,094613) (1,932,258)
Met book value 1 1 158,832 159,834
Met carrying value basis
Year ended June 30, 2022
Opening net book value 1 1 159,832 159,834
Additions - at cost - - 19,880 19,880
Amortization charge . - (74,904) (74,804)
Closing net book value i 1 104,818 104,820
Gross carrying value basis
As at June 30, 2022
Cost 37,647 800,000 1,274335 2111982
Accumulated amortization (37.646) (799,899) (1,162517) (2,007,162)
Net book value 1 1 104 818 104,620
Met carrying value basis
Year ended June 30, 2023
Opening net book value 1 1 104,818 104,820
Additions - at cost - - - -
Amortization charge - - (77,664) (77,664)
Closing net book value 1 1 27,154 27,156
Gross carrying value basis
As at June 30, 2023
Cost 37,647 800,000 1,274,335 2,111,982
Accumulated amortization (37,646) (799,999) (1,247,181) (2,084,826)
Net book value 1 1 27,154 27156
Amortization {% per annum) 33.33% 33.33% 33.33%
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June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

MNote weee RUPEES =seeeeaeens
11. CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Creditors 6,441 6,441
Modaraba management company’s remuneration payable - related party 21,936,310 11,352,217
Accrued expensas 11.1 9,616,653 8,270,117
Provision for Sindh Sales Tax on managament company's remuneration 2,851,720 1,475,788
Payable lo gratuity fund 11.3 1,041,276 1,087,429

Other liabilities 11.2 8,928,787 11,067,672
44,381,187 33,269,664

11.1  These includes Rs. 50,000 (2022: Rs. 50,000) for branch rent payable to Sindh Bank Limiled, related party.

11.2 This also includes chanty payable amounting to Rs, 2,816,769 (2022: Rs. 551,406). The reconciliation is

as follows:
June 30, 2023  June 30, 2022
Note  —-cceeee RUPEES =-meevesees
Opening balance 551,406 8,214
Additions during the year 3,665,363 543,192
Less: Paid to recognized chantable mstitutions 11.2.1 1,400,000 -
Closing balance 2,816,769 551,406
—_— ez _
11.2.1 This represents charity paid to recognized charitable institution.
11.3 Payable to gratuity fund 11.3.1 1,041,276 1,097,429
11.3.1 Reconciliation of balance due to defined benefit plan
Present value of defined benefit obligation 4,561,051 3,254 728
Less: Fair value of plan assets (3,519,775) (2,157,299)
Balance sheet liability 1,041,276 1,007 429
11.3.2 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Opening balance 3,254,728 2,059,290
Current service cost 974,582 621,373
Interest cost 439,388 211,077
Remeasurements charged to other comprehensive income
- Actuarial loss from changes in financial assumplions 13, 15,020
- Experience adjustments 120,987 347.968
(107,647) 362,988
Present value of defined benefit obligation 4,561,051 3,254,728
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11.3.3 Changes in fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assels
Contribulions
Interes! income on plan assels
Assets transferred to other group company
Retum on plan assets / (charges), excluding interest income
Fair value of plan assels
11.3.4 Expense recognized in profit and loss account
Current service cost
Interest cost
Interest income on plan assets
Expense recognized in profit and loss account
11.3.5 Total remeasurement chargeable in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of plan obligation:
Actuarial (loss) / gain from changes in financial assumptions
Experience adjustments
Less: Relum on plan assets, excluding interest income
Remeasurement of actuarial (gains) / losses on defined benefit liability
11.3.6 Changes in net liability
Balance sheel liability
Expenses to be charged to profit and loss account

Remeasurement chargeable in other comprehensive income
Contributions

Significant actuarial assumptions
Discount rate used for interest cost in profit and loss account
Discount rate used for year end abligation
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June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

eemmes-me RUpees -
2,157,299 989,242
1,097,429 1,070,048
365,312 156,237
(100,265) (58,228)
3,519,775 2,157,299
974,582 621,373
439,388 211,077
(365,312) (156,237)
1,048,658 676,213

13,340
120,987

15,020
347,968

(107,647) 362,988
100,265 58,228
(7.382) 421,216
1,097,429 1,070,048
1,048,658 676,213
(7.382) 421,216
(1,087,429)  {1,070,048)
1,041,276 1,007 429

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
seeeeess Percentage seseee

13.50%
15.75%

10.25%

13.50%
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June 30,2023  June 30, 2022
—e= Pegrcentage -—-—

Salary increase used for year end obligation - -
Salary increase FY 2021 N/A N/A

Salary increase FY 2022 15.75% 13.50%
Salary increase FY 2023 15.75% 13.50%
Salary increase FY 2024 15.75% 13.504%
Salary increase FY 2025 15.75% 13.50%
Salary increase FY 2026 15.75% 13.50%
Salary increase FY 2027 15.75% 13.50%
Salary increase FY 2028 onwards 1-Jul-23 1-Jul-22
Net salary is increased al
" SLIC " SLIC

Mortality rates (2001-05)-1 *  (2001-05)-1 "

The mortality rates are provided by the State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan (SLIC).

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

seemmanneee RUpees —nan
" Age-based " Age-based
Withdrawal rates (per appendix) *  (per appendix) "
Retirement assumption Age 60 Age 60

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
=== Rupees

Estimated expenses to be charged to P&L

Current services cost 1,170,371 974,582

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 704,586 430,371

Interest income on plan asset (627,007) (354,445)
1,247,950 1,050,507

Plan assets comprise at June 30, 2022
Cash andlor deposits 100% 100%

Year end sensitivity (+/- 100bps) on defined benefit obligation

Discount rate +100 bps 4,066,015 2,879,939
Discount rate - 100 bps 5,147,880 3,701,868
Salary increase +100 bps 5,148,725 3,702,521
Salary increase - 100 bps 4,056,528 2,872 598
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June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

nene Rupees =—-smeeee
Expected benefit payments for the next 10 years and beyond
FY 2023 " 133,596
FY 2024 174,980 164,716
FYy 2025 822,609 762,992
FY 2026 257,380 230,093
FY 2027 294 836 258,154
FY 2028 337,299 289,819
FY 2028 384,823 325,785
FY 2030 442923 371,500
FY 2031 2,188,983 1,785,192
FY 2032 557,313 454,226
FY 2033 646,976 182,219,826
FY 2034 onwards 308.651,035 -
The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 12 years 13 years
12. CERTIFICATE CAPITAL
12.1 Authorized certificate capital
June 30,2023 June 30, 2022 June 30,2023 June 30, 2022
Mumber of certificates Rupees

50,000,000 50,000,000 Modaraba certificates of Rs. 10 each 500,000,000 200,000,000

12.2 lIssued, subscribed and paid - up cerlificate capital
June 30,2023 June 30, 2022 June 30,2023 June 30, 2022

Number of certificates Rupees
45,000,000 45,000,000 Modaraba certificates of Rs. 10 each fully paidin cash 450,000,000 450,000,000

12.3 As at June 30, 2023, Sindh Modaraba Management Limited (Management Company) holds 42,446,000
i.e. 94,33% (2022: 42,446,000 i.e. 94.33%) certificates of the Modaraba.
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

Note -—--— Rupees -—---s=-em
13. RESERVES
Capital
Statutory reserve 13.1 160,416,320 134,334,148
Revenue
Unappropriated profit 111,950,892 61,614 822

272,367,212 195,948,970
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14.

14.1

15.

15.1

15.1.1

The statutory reserve represents profit set aside by the Modaraba to comply with the Modaraba Regulations
issued by the SECP.

During the year, the Modaraba has transferred an amount of Rs. 26,082,172 (2022: Rs. 13,262,644) which
represents 20% (2022: 20%) of the net profit afler tax for the year.

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
Note -w-cees RUPEES =—cemeeeeme

LONG TERM LOAN 14.1 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000

This represents interest frea loan provided by the Management Company (related party) to the Modaraba.
The loan is sub-ordinated to senior debt and is repayable at the discretion of Modaraba. The Modaraba
has the option to issue modaraba certificates in fulure against this loan, subject to necessary regulatory
approvals.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

CONTINGENCIES

The Modaraba received a letter from the Assistant Commissioner - Sindh Revenue Board (SRE), wherein,
it is mentioned that during scrutiny of the financial slatements of the Modaraba from July-2014 to March
2018 he came to know that the Modaraba is engaged in providing / rendering taxable services which falls
under the Second Schedule of Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 (the Act), and the sales tax on such
sefvices mainly ljarah / lease rentals aggregates to Rs. 27.67 million which is outstanding. Such letters
were also received by some other Modarabas and collectively, a petition against the same was filed through
a commeon legal counsel in the Honorable High Court of Sindh challenging levy of Services Sales Tax on
ljarahflease financing transactions. The Honorable High Court has granted a stay stating that no adverse
order in respedct of the proposed reatment shall be made against the Petilioners.

The management of the Modaraba based on discussions with its legal counsel is of the view that the Sindh

Sales Tax is not applicable on ljarah transactions and expect that the matter will be decided in Modarabas'
faveor. Accordingly, no liability in respect of the above has been recognized in these financial statements.

45



ANNUAL REPORT JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

16.

16.1

16.1.1

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benefits
Legal and professional charges
Repairs and maintenance

Utility services

Takaful / insurance - owned assets
Takaful / insurance - ijarah and diminishing musharaka
Postage, courier and telegraphs
Generalor sharing and fuel charges
Entertainment

Adverlisement and publications

Staff orientation and training

Rent, ratas and taxes

Registration and subscription fee
Travelling and conveyance

Security services

Printing, stationery and photocopy
Auditors' remuneration

Depreciation expense - tangible assets
Amortization expense - intangible assets
Danation

Miscellaneous

16.1 &16.6 35,631,174

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5
101
10.2
16.7

Note --—e-eeees —= RUPBES -==—ererreems
26,117,326
1,750,796 1,779,789
1,357,541 896,137
1,463,862 1,177,542
158,445 145 233
869,103 448 189
170,982 196,769
1,273,414 925,358
291,907 188,632
135,312 176,450
10,250 6,000
800,016 799,995
1,187,766 1,201,624
5,997,638 3,764 839
600,000 600,000
564,098 505,479
334,636 305,234
1,248,965 1,431,881
77,664 74,904
9,997,500 -
170,955 146,287
64,092,024 40,887,729
—_——— —_——

e i WL R b B, T Y
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June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

This includes an amount of Rs. 1,101,845 (2022 Rs. 855,955) charged fo the provident fund and a provision

for gratuity of Rs. 1,048,658 (2022: Rs. 676.,213).

Defined contribution plan

Size of the fund (total assets)
Cost of investment made
Fair value of investment made

Percentage of investment made
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Unaudited Audited
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
—ermremeee e RUPEES =memrmemme e

12,185,852
11,997,768
11,997,768

10,689,528
10,607,930
10,607,920

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
--—-= Parcentage ---—--—

899% 28%
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Break up of Investment at cost

__ dune 30, 2023 _ une 30, 2022
Rupees Percentage Rupees Perceniage
10,607,930 99% 11,997,768 28%

16.2 This includes an amount of Rs. 432,000 (2022: Rs. 432,000) charged to Shariah Advisor as compensation
for his service.

16.3 This includes an amount of Rs. 1,080,000 (2022: Rs. 720,000) against sharing of expenses with Sindh
Insurance Limited - relaled party.

16.4 This includes an amount of Rs. 600,000 (2022: Rs. 600,000) branch rent to Sindh Bank Limited - related

party.
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
sesmeseeensees RUpEES —-emeeeees
16.5 Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fee 177,023 160,930
Half yearly review fee 53,240 48 400
Special certification 46,585 42,350
Other services 20,000 20,000
Sindh sales tax 24,788 22614
Out of pocket expenses 13,000 11,000
334,636 305,294
16.6 The remuneration paid to key management personnel
Basic salary 5,971,061 4,836,892
House rent 2,686,978 2,176,647
Cther allowances 1,010,898 967,380
Bonuses 1,938,412 1,105,689
Provident fund 517,611 483,685
Other benefits 3,453,094 2,348,279
15,578,054 11,918,672

16.7 This represent donation ta the Provincial Disaster Management Authority (PDMA) - Government of Sindh
(GoS).
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17.

18.

1 Bl

19.1

20.

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022
Note --semeeeee RUPEES =omesvesees
(REVERSAL) / PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL RECEIVABLES

(Reversal) / provision against Diminishing Musharaka 7.2 (2,547,401) 13,258,015

(2.547,401) 13,259,015

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

Mote -—--—-—-- Rupees -—--------
OTHER INCOME - NET
Documentation and processing fee 442 336 641,177
Gain on disposal of fixed assels 232,568 =
Others 568,007 5788
1,242,911 646,965

MODARABA MANAGEMENT COMPANY'S REMUNERATION 19.1 21,936,310 11,362,217

The Modaraba Management Company is entitled to remuneration under the provisions of the Modaraba
Companies and Modarabas (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1880 upto a maximum of 10% per annum
of annual profits of the Modaraba computed in the préscnbad mannér. The remuneration for the year ended
June 30, 2023, has been recognized at 10% of the prafit for the year before charging such remuneration
and taxation.

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

memvmeeses RUPEES ==eeseeaeas

TAXATION - Net
Provision - Opening 4,578,170
Provision for taxation
- Current year 64,201,697 34,380,842
- Prior year (37,490) -

64,164 207 34,380,842
Advance tax deducted / paid (58,186,765) (20,802,772)
Provision - Closing 10,555,612 4,578,170

20.1 The provision for current tax is based on normal income tax charge as per the relevant sections of Income

Tax Ordinance, 2001,

20.2 Deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 11.68 million has not been accounted for in these financial statements

21.

due o uncertainties regarding the fulure taxable profits against which such asset would be ulilized.

EARNINGS PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED
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21.1 Basic

Basic eamings per certificale is calculated by dividing the net profit after taxation for the year by the weighted
average number of certificates oulstanding during the year as follows:

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

meseemneess RUPEES wwmeecnesen
Profit for the year after taxation (Rupees) 130,410,860 66,313,222
Weighled average number of cerlificales (Numbers) 45,000,000 45,000,000
Earnings per certificale (Rupees) 2.90 1.47

21.2 Diluted

Diluted eamings per certificate has not been presented as the Modaraba does nol have any convertible
instruments in issue as at June 30, 2023 which would have any effect on the eamings per certificate.

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

seesmsesas RUPBBE =s—=seees
22. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total numbers of employees at year end 14 14
Average number of employees 14 14
23. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS

The Modaraba has related party relationship with the Management Company, its associated companies,
Directors and key managemenl personnel,

The details of related party transactions and balances otherwise than disclosed else where in these financial
statement are as follows:
June 30,2023 June 30, 2022

e RUPEES —mmmemeeme
231 TRANSACTIONS FOR THE YEAR
Sindh Bank Limited - assoclated company
Income from deposits 30,991,020 46,574,435
Income from term deposit receipt 39,726,021 12,352,874
Branch rent paid 600,000 850,000
71,317,041 59,777,309
Sindh Modaraba Management Limited - management company
Modaraba management company’'s remuneration paid 11,352,217 7,862 480
Dividend paid / distributed 50,935,200 42 446,000
50,308.480

49

62,287,417



ANNUAL REPORT JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Sindh Insurance Limited - associated company
Takaful / insurance paid
Sharing of expenses paid

Key Management Personnel
Salaries, allowances and benefits paid

Sindh Modaraba Employees Provident Fund - employee fund

Contribution paid (both employer's and employee's contribution)

Sindh Modaraba Employees Gratuity Fund - employee fund
Contribution paid

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets as per balance sheet

At amortized cost

Current assels

- Cash and bank balances
Short term investments

- Advances and other receivables

- Current portion of diminishing musharaka
Current portion of long term loan

Mon-current assets
Long term portion of diminishing musharaka
- Long term loan

Financial liabilities as per balance sheet
At amortized cost

Current liabilities

- Creditors, accrued and other liabilities
- Profit distribution payable
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June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

Note -—-eee-es RUpEES =—-semenen
1,892,951 852,078
983,128 968,635
2,876,079 1,820,713

16.6 15,578,054 11,918,672
2,191,418 1,711,910
1,097,429 1,070,048

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

== RUpBRS --————u-
182,076,260 494 176,101
700,000,000 320,000,000
27,496,785 20,188,556
369,562,127 338,062,224
431,600{ | 809,600
1,279,566,772 1,173,236 481
494 229 740 505 645,798
1,222 862 2,378,066
495,452 602 508,024,764
1.775,019,374 1.681,261,245
44,381,187 32,469 668
929 481 TR7 924
45,310,668 33,257,582
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251.1

25.1.2

251.3

25.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The activities of the Modaraha expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Beard of Directors of the Management Company has the overall responsibility for the establishment
and oversight of the Modaraba's nsk management framework.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the fulure cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate
as a result of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, profit
rate risk and other price rigk.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk anses mainly where receivables
and payables exist in foreign currencies. As al June 30, 2023, Modaraba has no financial assets and
liabilifies in foreign cumrencies.

Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Muctuate
because of changes in the market profit rates. The Modaraba has adopted appropriate policies to minimise
its exposure to this risk.

Price risk

Price rigk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from profit rate risk or currency risk) whether those
changes are caused by faclors specific 1o the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting
all similar financial instruments traded in the markel. As on June 30, 2023, the Modaraba did not hold any
instruments which exposed it to price risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party lo a financial instrument will fail 1o discharge an obligation and cause
the other party to incur a financial lass. The risk generally emanates from balances wilh banks, ljarah
rentals receivable, Invesiments and Diminishing Musharaka arrangements, deposits and other receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period without taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancement amounts are as follows:
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June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

Note -eseeseeee Rupees
Cash and bank balances 182,076,260 494,176,101
Short term investments 700,000,000 320,000,000
Diminishing Musharaka B63,791,867 843,708,022
Advances and other receivables 27.496,785 20,188,556
Long term loan 1,654,462 3,188,566

1,775,019,374 1,681,261,245

As at June 30, 2023, there were no financial assets which were pledged as collateral for liabilities or
contingent liabilities of the Modaraba.

25.2.1 Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors affect groups of counterparties
whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Modaraba's total credit exposure.
Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Modaraba's performance to developments

affecting a parlicular industry.

The Modaraba manages credit risks and its concentration through diversification of activilies to avoid undue
conceniration of risk with individuals, groups or specific industry segments. For this purpese, the Modaraba
has established exposure limils for individuals and industrial sectors.

25.2.2 Details of the seclor analysis ol gross investment portfolio is as follows:

June 30, 2023

June 30, 2022

Sectors Rupees % Rupees %
Sugar 63,972,855 6.96 102,391,330 11.35
il & Gas - Oil Marketing 11,280,000 1.23 = -
Securily services 23,106,380 2.51 31,087,040 3.45
Other services 62,054,013 6.75 30,095,314 3.34
Individual 45420169 4.94 32,143,608 3.56
Brokerage 74,682 0.01 634 677 0.07
Transport 57,382,505 6.24 50,683,888 6.62
Metal & Sleel 2,275,000 0.25 2,275,000 0.25
Construction 177,162,502 19.27 147210176 16.32
Pharmaceutical 12,920,625 1.41 30,465,000 3.38
Poultry, Poultry feed & hatchery 51,206,590 5.57 52,706,589 5.84
Chemical & Allied {Other) 35,441,402 3.85 42,499 515 4.71
Textile 62,756,501 6.83 83,149 560 .22
Food & Beverages 56,250,000 6.12 68,750,000 7.62
Energy 42 200,000 4.59 4,522,225 0.50
Health 197,020,834 21.43 199,500,000 2212
Others 18,931,084 2.0 14,814 776 1.64
919,465,142 100 001,928,698 100
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25.2.3Management of credit risk
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The Modaraba's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the internal risk management
polices and the requirements of the Prudential Regulations (PRs) for Modarabas issued by the SECP. The
Modaraba seeks to manage its credit isk exposure through diversification of its ljarah and Diminishing
Musharka arrangements to avoid undue concentration of risks with individuals or groups of customers in

specific locations or businesses,

The credit quality of Modaraba's financial assets with banks is assessed with reference to external credit

ratings.

Credit risk ratings

Bank balances - Sindh Bank Limited

Bank balances - Meezan Bank Limited

TDRs - Meezan Bank Limited

Bank balances - Bank Al-Habib Limited

Bank balances - NRSP Micro Finance Bank Limited
Bank balances - Soneri Bank Limited

Bank balances - Bank Al-Baraka Limited

TDRs - Soneri Bank Limited

Bank balances - Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

33

Rating

A+ [ A1
AAAA-T+
AAATA-1+
AAA [ A1+

AlAA
AA- [ A1+

A+ | A1
AA- [ A1+

Ab+ [ A1+

June 30, 2023  June 30, 2022
RUpERS eemeemeeee-

13,425183 484,432,563

767 9,599 447

- 320,000,000

14,036 13,455

17,642 16,438
92,511,625 -
76,000,000 .

700,000,000

21,226 :

881,990,479

814,061,893
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25.3 Liquidity risk
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Liguidity risk is the nsk that the Modaraba will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial oblgations as
they fall due. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Modaraba will be required to pay its
liabilities earlier than expected or will face difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with
financial liabiliies as they fall dus. The Modaraba's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liguidity to meel its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Modaraba's reputation.
The maturity profile of Modaraba's financial assets and liabilities based on the contractual matunties is as

follows:

Maturities of assels and liabilities
Financlal assats

Cash and bank balances

Short tenm investments

Diminishing Musharaka

Long lerm koan

Advances and olher recelvables

Financial liabilitias
Crediters, acerued and olher labshities
Profit distribution payable

Maturities of assets and liabilities
Financial assets

Cash and bank balances

Short temm investments

Biminishing Musharaka

Long term koan

Advances and other recalvables

Finanelal llabllites
Creditors, accrued and ather Habalibes
Profit distribution payable

June 30, 2023
Profit bearin Non - prafil bearing
Maturity Maturity
Maturity | after 1 year Maturity | after 1 year Total
upto 1 year| and upto Sub Total upta 1 year| and upte Sub Total
5 years 5 yoars
Rupoes
178,235,009 * 178,235,008 3841251 3841251 182,078,260
700,000,000 . 700,000,000 . s . 700,000,000
68562927 484223740 863,791,847 - - . BELTH BT
- - . 431,600 1,222,862 1,654 462 1.654 462
. - 27,496,785 - 7,496,785 27,496,785
1,247 797136 404 209740 1742026876 31,769,838 1,222 862 32002498 1,775.019.374
- 44,281,187 44 381187 44 351 187
. . . #l9,481 B9481 a4
* * 45,210,668 + 45,210,688 45,210 568
June 30, 2022
Profit baarin Non - profit bearing
Maturity Maturity
Maturity | after 1 year Maturity | after 1 year Total
upta 1 year| and uplo Sub Total upto 1 year| and uplo Sub Total
5 yaars 5 yaars
Rupees
482 734,368 - 402734388 L4417 - 140,780 484176100
320,000,600 - 320,000,000 - - . 320,000,000
338062234 305,645,736 843,708,022 - - . &43,708,022
- - - B09.600 1,378,566 3188 568 3,188,566
- - - 20,184,556 - 20,188,556 20,849,556
1,150,796,592 505645738 1656442330 22419289 1,378,946 24 B1B,855 1681261245
= - - 32,469,668 « 32 459,668 12 459,668
. - s TR A . TET A4 787,924
= - - 33,257,592 - 33,257,552 33,257,552
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26.

27.

28.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board's policy is to maintain a sound capital base so as o maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the retum
on capital, which the Modaraba defines as net profit for the year divided by lotal Certificate holders' equity.
The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividend to ordinary certificate holders.

The Modaraba is nol subject {o externally imposed capital reguirements.

The Modaraba finances its operations through equity and management of working capital with a view to
mazintain an appropriate mix between various sources of finance {o minimize risk. There is no borrowing
made by the Modaraba as al the balance sheet dale, therefore, no gearing ratio is calculated.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability settled, between knowledgeable
willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Conseguently, diferances can anse between carrying values
and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Modaraba is a going concemn without any
intention or requirement to curlail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on
adverse terms.

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 13, 'Fair value measurements’ requires the Modaraba
to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);

- inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indireclly {i.e., derived from prices) (level 2); and

- inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on cbservable market data (i.e., unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

As at June 30, 2023, there were no financial instruments which were measured at fair values in the financial
statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

As per IFRS 8: "Operating Segments”, segments are reporled in a manner consistent with the intemnal
reporiing used by the chief operating decislon-maker. The Chief Executive Officer has been idenfified as
the chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operaling segments.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the Modaraba's entire product portfolio and considers the

business 1o have a single operaling segment. The Modaraba's asset allocation decisions are based on a
single integrated investment strategy and the Modaraba's performance is evaluated on an overall basis.
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The internal reporting provided to the Chief Executive Officer for the Modaraba's assets, liabilities and
performance is prepared on a consistent basis with the measurement and recognition principles of approved
accounling slandards as applicable in Pakislan.

The Modaraba is domiciled in Pakistan. All of the Modaraba’s income is from investment in antities
incorporated in Pakistan.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.

Revenue from operation from ten major customers of the Modaraba constitutes 65.20% (2022: 71.39%
from ten major customers) of the total revenue from operations during the year ended 30 June 2023.

29. NON - ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board of Directors of the Management Company in their meeting held on 21 September 2023, approved
a cash distribution of Rs, 1.25 per certificate. The financial statements of the Modaraba for the year ended
June 30, 2023 do not include the effect of this distribution which will be accounted for in the financial
statements of the Modaraba for the year ending June 30, 2024,

June 30, 2023  June 30, 2022
Note =c—-—-ee RUpEeSs =eemeceeee
30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Cash and bank balances 4 182,076,260 454 176,101
Short term investments 5 700,000,000 320,000,000

882,076,260 814,176,101
31. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Prior year's figures have been reclassified for the purpose of better presentation and comparison where
considered necassary.

32. DATE OF AUTHORISATION

These financial stalements were authorized for issue on 21 September 2023 by the Board of Directors of
the Management Company.

33. GENERAL
The figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees.

For Sindh Modaraba Management Limited {Management Company)

o it é”f i o

Chairman Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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Pattern Of Certificate Holding By The Certificate Holders
As At June 30, 2023

Number Of Certificate Holding Total Certificate
Certificate Holders From To Held

250 1 - 100 1,728
445 i1 - 500 220,054

52 501 - 1000 49,985

80 1001 - 5000 228,892

20 5001 - 10000 145,000

3 10001 - 15000 32,840

o 15001 - 20000 95,500

3 200M - 25000 71,500

3 30001 - 35000 99,500

2 2001 - 40000 79,000

1 45001 - 50000 50,000

2 50001 - 55000 104,500

b | 60001 - 65000 60,500

1 65001 - 70000 68,000

1 70001 - 75000 75,000

1 75001 - 80000 76,500

i | 145001 - 150000 150,000

| 180001 - 185000 185,000

b | 200001 - 205000 205,000

i | 245001 - 250000 249,000

;| 295001 - 300000 298,500

1 42445001 - 42450000 42,446,000

877 45,000,000

Categories Of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage
(i} Government; NIL

(i} Assoclated Companles, Undertakings and Related Partles (name wise detalls);

Sindh Modaraba Management Lid. 42 446,000
42,446,000 94.32

(i) Mutual Funds; NIL

{iv) Directors, Chief Executive, and their spouse and minor children (name wise details);

Ishfagque Ahmed -CEQ 500 0.001
Rehan Anjum -Director 500 0.001
Tahoora Ishfaque -Spouse (CEQ) 500 0.001
Soofia Ishfague -Relative (CED) 500 0.001
Ahmed Salman -Spouse (Rukhsana Narejo -Director) 5,000 0.011

7,000 0.016

{v) Executives;

Faraz Uz Zafar -Head of Compliance 2,000
2,000 0.004
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Pattern Of Certificate Holding By The Certificate Holders
As At June 30, 2023

Categorias Of Sharehelders Shares Held Percentage
(vi} Public Secior Companies and corporations; NIL
(wii} Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Nen-Banking Finance
Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful Companies and Modarabas; NIL
Hafiz Limited 33,000
33,000 0.073
Individual
Local - Individuals 2,388,500 -
2,512,000 5.582
Grand Total: 45,000,000 100.00

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting rights in the Public Sector Company

Sindh Modaraba Management Ltd. 42,446,000 094.32
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Notice of Annual Review Meeting & Announcement Of Cash Dividend

Motice is hereby given that the Sth Annual Review Meeting of certificate holders of Sindh Modaraba will be
held on 26 Qctober 2023 at 10:30 AM. at 602, 6th Floor, Progressive Centre, 30-A, Block-6, PE.CH.S,
Shahra e Faisal, Karachi to review the performance of the Modaraba for he year ended June 30, 2023 in
terms of clause 20 of the Prudential Regulations for Modaraba issued vide Circular number 4/2004 by Registrar
Medaraba Companies and Modarabas.

The Board of Directors of Sindh Modaraba has approved a final cash dividend of 12.50% (Rs.1.25 per
certificate) for the year ended June 30, 2023.

The Modaraba Centificate transfer book shall remain closed frem 19 October 2023 to 26 October 2023 (both
days inclusive) lo delermine the names of Cerlificale Holders enlilled lo receive dividend and 1o atiend the
Annual Review Meeting.

Agenda
Transmission of Annual Audited Financial Statements to its members through QR-enabled code and
Weblink.

SECP has allowed all the listed companies, vide its S.R.0. 389(1)2023 dated 21 March 2023, to circulate the
annual balance sheet, profit & loss account, auditor's report and directors repon, elc. ("annual audited financial
statements”) to its members through QR enabled code and Weblink, after obtaining approval of share/certificate
holders in its Annual General/Review Meeting.

However, Sindh Modaraba shall circulate the annual audited financial statements through email in case an
email address has been provided as required by the member/shareholder. Furthermore, Sindh Modaraba
shall send the same in hard copy to their members/sharehclders at their registered addresses, free of cost,
within cne week, if a request has been made by the member on the standard requast form available cn the
website of the company.

Therefore, the members/share/certificate holders are requested to approve the transmission of Annual Audited
Financial Statlements via QR-enabled code and Weblink.

Karachi M. Adnan Shakeel
October 05, 2023 Company Secrelary
Note:

1. The Modaraba Certificate transfer book shall remain closed from October 19, 2023 to October 26, 2023
{both days inclusive) to determine the names of Certificate Holders entitled to receive dividends and
to attend the Annual Review Meeting. Transfers received in order at the registrar’s office of the Modaraba
up to the close of the business on Oclober 18, 2023 will be treated in time for the entittement of profit
distribution and to attend Annual Review Meeting.

2. The certificale holders are advised 1o notify the registrar of Sindh Modaraba, of any change in their
addresses.

3. CDC cerificate holders desiring to attend the meeting are requested to bring their criginal CNIC, Account,
and Participant's 1D number, for identification purposes.
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Islamic Financing
Products Offered hy
Sindh Modaraba

® ljarah

¢ Diminishing Musharaka
® Morabaha

® Musharaka

® Salam

® Jstisna

SINDH MODARABA

1st Floor, Imperial Court, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi.
Tel : (92-21) 35640708-9 web: www.sindhmodarabaltd.com
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